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In a significant decision under the Packers and Stockyards Act of 1921, 7 U.S.C. §§
181-229, the USDA Judicial Officer has determined that a right of first refusal
granted to the nation’s largest packer, IBP, Inc., under its agreement with several
Kansas feedlots had the effect or the potential effect of suppressing competition,
thus violating section 202 [7 U.S.C. § 192] of the Act. The Judicial Officer, however,
also concluded that the USDA’s Grain Inspection, Packers and Stockyards Admin-
istration (GIPSA) had failed to prove that other elements of the agreement violated
the Act. In re IBP, Inc. , P & S Docket No. D-95-0049 (July 31, 1998). IBP has sought
judicial review of the right of first refusal portion of the decision.

GIPSA, the Secretary’s delegate for administratively enforcing the Packers and
Stockyards Act, filed its Complaint against IBP in August 1995. The filing generated
considerable attention because it followed criticism that the Secretary had been less
than zealous in its oversight of potentially anticompetitive practices in the
meatpacking industry. See, e.g.,  U.S. Gen. Accounting Office, Packers and Stock-
yards Administration: Oversight of Livestock Market Competitiveness Needs To Be
Enhanced  (Pub. No. RCED-92-36, Oct. 1991). To some, including a USDA advisory
committee on agricultural concentration formed by Secretary Glickman, the action
against IBP was characterized as representing a “commitment” by the current
Secretary to enforce the Packers and Stockyards Act. USDA Advisory Committee on
Agricultural Concentration, Concentration in Agriculture  11 (1996)[hereinafter
Concentration in Agriculture ]; see also  Robert H. Brown, USDA Files Complaint
Against IBP For Favoritism , Feedstuffs, Aug. 7, 1995, at 3; Rod Smith, IBP Argues
Marketing Pacts Not Inappropriate , Feedstuffs, Sept. 4, 1995, at 6.

GIPSA’s Complaint was filed against the backdrop of historic high levels of
concentration in the meatpacking industry. “For example, the four largest packers
accounted for 82 percent of steer and heifer slaughter in 1994, versus only 72 percent
in 1990 and 36 percent in 1980.” Packers and Stockyards Programs, GIPSA,
Concentration in the Red Meat Packing Industry  2 (1996). In the broadest sense, it
represented a challenge to one aspect of this concentration: so-called “captive
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In Nelson v. Freeland , no. 216A98, 1998 N.C. Lexis 849 (N.C. 1998) )decided
December 31) a sharply divided North Carolina Supreme Court abolished the long-
standing common law distinction between invitees and licensees. The case arose
from injuries suffered by plaintiff, Nelson, when he tripped over a stick that
defendant, Freeland, had inadvertently left upon his porch. Nelson had come to
Freeland’s house to pick him up to take him to a meeting. In a comprehensive
analysis the Court noted that the modern trend is toward abolishing the common-
law trichotomy in favor of a reasonable person standard. It noted that England
abolished the trichotomy by statute in 1957, and the U.S. Supreme Court abolished
the trichotomy shortly thereafter in admiralty cases. The N.C. Supreme Court
counted eleven U.S. jurisdictions that have abolished the trichotomy between
invitee, licensee, and trespasser entirely, and fourteen that have abolished the
invitee-licensee distinction while maintaining the limited duty rule for trespassers.
The Court did the latter, abolishing the invitee-licensee distinction, replacing it with
“a standard of reasonable care toward all lawful visitors.” It retained the common-
law rule for trespass that a trespasser has no basis for claiming protection beyond
that the landowner must refrain from doing willful injury. The Court reasoned that
to abolish this distinction would place an unfair burden upon the landowner that has
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supply” arrangements by packers.
Captive supply arrangements are a

form of vertical integration or “coordina-
tion” by packers. They often are struc-
tured as forward contracts or marketing
agreements. According to the 1996 Re-
port of the USDA Advisory Committee on
Agricultural Concentration, “these ar-
rangements have a tendency to thin mar-
ket price reporting (reduce the volume on
which reported prices are based) and
shorten the weekly marketing ‘window,’
which can disadvantage suppliers who
do not have a packer arrangement, and
distort reported market prices down-
ward.” Concentration in Agriculture , su-
pra  at 10.

The Committee also found that “large
sellers are far more likely to participate
in captive supply arrangements than
small sellers.” Id . Though large feedlots
are more likely than smaller suppliers to
participate in a captive supply arrange-
ment, returns to participating feedlots
may vary depending on the form of the
arrangement. For example, the Commit-
tee found that cattle obtained under for-

ward contracts brought slightly lower
prices than cash market cattle with simi-
lar characteristics. This difference, ac-
cording to the Committee, was attribut-
able to lowered producer risk under the
forward contract. Id . Marketing agree-
ments, on the other hand, resulted in
slightly higher than cash market prices.
The Committee noted, however, that
“[h]igher prices would be expected if
slaughterers use marketing agreements
to procure cattle of higher quality or to
lower processing costs.” Id .

At issue in IBP  was a “captive supply”
arrangement in the form of a marketing
agreement. Specifically, the issue was
whether an exclusive marketing agree-
ment, known as the Beef Marketing
Agreement, that IBP had entered into
with several Kansas feedlots, known as
the Beef Marketing Group, violated sec-
tion 202(a) and (b), 7 U.S.C. § 192(a), (b),
of the Act.

Section 202(a) prohibits packers from
engaging in, or using, “any unfair, un-
justly discriminatory, or deceptive trade
practice or device.” 7 U.S.C. § 192(a).
Section 202(b) prohibits packers from
making or giving “any undue or unrea-
sonable preference or advantage to any
particular person or locality in any re-
spect whatsoever, or subject[ing] any
particular person or locality to any undue
or unreasonable prejudice or disadvan-
tage in any respect whatsoever.” Id . §
192(b).

In its action against IBP, GIPSA al-
leged that IBP’s use of the Beef Market-
ing Agreement during the period from
February 1994 to the filing of the com-
plaint on August 3, 1995, violated sec-
tions 202(a) and (b) of the Act by giving an
undue or unreasonable preference to the
feedlots who were parties to the Agree-
ment by guaranteeing those feedlots a
high price for their cattle. GIPSA also
alleged that IBP subjected similarly situ-
ated feedlots in IBP’s procurement area
to an undue or unreasonable prejudice or
disadvantage by refusing to purchase
livestock of comparable quality from those
feedlots under the same terms made avail-
able to the Beef Marketing Group. In re
IBP, slip op. at 1-2.

Before entering into the Beef Market-
ing Agreement with IBP, the Beef Mar-
keting Group had a marketing agree-
ment with Excel. When that agreement
terminated, IBP entered into the Beef
Marketing Agreement “under terms es-
sentially proposed by the Beef Marketing
Group.” Id . at 12. Unlike the traditional
method in Kansas for live cattle sales in
which bids are expressed in dollars per
hundredweight, the Beef Marketing
Agreement provided that bids would be
adjusted based on the quality of the cattle
purchased by IBP.

At its inception, the Agreement con-
templated that bids would be based on

the highest price paid in Kansas for at
least 500 cattle in a given week, as re-
ported by the USDA. Cattle that were top
quality received this price, known as the
“Kansas practical top.” Cattle of lesser
quality received a discounted bid. Id .

Bids were made on Monday and had to
be accepted or rejected by Wednesday,
thus giving producers the benefit of any
increase in market value during the week.
IBP committed to bid on every pen of
cattle and had until Saturday of the
following week to pick up the cattle. IBP
also had the right of first refusal for all
cattle on which it bid the Kansas practi-
cal top. Finally, IBP agreed to share
slaughter information with the Beef
Marketing Group. Id . at 12-13.

Several months after its inception, the
Agreement was changed to provide that
the basis for bids was the reported Kan-
sas top price for 2,500 cattle or more. The
time for accepting or rejecting bids was
moved back from Wednesday to Tuesday,
and the pick up date was moved back
from Saturday to Friday. Id . Later, other
changes were made, including the addi-
tion of a grade and yield option. The right
of first refusal was expanded to give IBP
that right where IBP had bid on pens
when it had bid the Kansas top price
minus 50 cents. Id . at 14.

Under the right of first refusal, IBP
only had to match the previous high bid;
it did not have to bid a higher price. Thus,
IBP could “enter a bid, await, but not
participate in, any additional bidding,
and obtain cattle merely by matching any
bid that may be higher than [its] bid.” Id .
at 15. This arrangement differed in sev-
eral respects from the traditional method
of selling cattle in Kansas. For example,
under the traditional method, the first
buyer who arrived at the feedlot was
permitted to place the first bid. Other
buyers were then given the opportunity
to bid. However, the advantage of being
the first bidder arose from the fact that if
all subsequent bids by other buyers
matched the first bid, the first bidder
obtained the cattle. For that reason, buy-
ers frequently arrived at the feedlot the
night before a sale. Id . at 10.

After the inception of the Beef Market-
ing Agreement, IBP continued to buy
cattle, under traditional methods, from
Kansas feedlots that were not members
of the Beef Marketing Group. Other pack-
ers also bought cattle from these feed-
lots. Id . at 14. Also, two members of the
Beef Marketing Group, while remaining
members of the Group, stopped selling
cattle under the terms of the Beef Mar-
keting Agreement. Id .

The Judicial Officer found that the
feedlots that were not members of the
Beef Marketing Group continued to re-
ceive competitive prices after the forma-
tion of the Beef Marketing Agreement.
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Id . at 14-15. The Judicial Officer also
held that the testimony of the owners
and operators of these feedlots “failed to
show that they were harmed by the Beef
Marketing Agreement.” Id . at 15. Sev-
eral of these feedlots, in fact, expanded in
capacity and occupancy during this pe-
riod. Id .

In its Complaint, GIPSA alleged that,
through the Beef Marketing Agreement,
IBP provided the Beef Marketing Group
members with a price preference of $0.43
per hundredweight. This preference, ac-
cording to GIPSA, was undue and unrea-
sonable because IBP refused to make the
same terms available to similarly situ-
ated sellers of comparable livestock. Id .

The Judicial Officer, however, con-
cluded that GIPSA had failed to prove
that $0.43 accurately represented the
price difference. Though the evidence
indicated that IBP “must have, on aver-
age, paid a higher price for cattle pur-
chased under the terms of the Beef Mar-
keting Agreement than it did on other
transactions,” the amount was “uncer-
tain and unproven.” Id . at 24.

The Judicial Officer also concluded that
IBP received benefits under the Beef
Marketing Agreement for the higher price
it paid for cattle. Specifically, the Judi-
cial Officer found that IBP acquired the
right of first refusal and the right to delay
its pick up of the cattle by as many as

three extra days.
Each of these non-price conditions of

sale were valuable to IBP, according to
the Judicial Officer. The right of first
refusal helped IBP maintain a steady
supply of cattle; it allowed IBP’s cattle
buyers to be the first bidder at Beef
Marketing Group feedlots without hav-
ing to be the first to arrive; and “it
eliminate[d] repeated telephone calls and
trips to the feedlots during the negotiat-
ing process.” Id . at 25-28. Similarly, the
extra days for picking up the cattle ben-
efited IBP “by allowing greater flexibility
in scheduling delivery of cattle for slaugh-
ter.” Id . at 29.

PSA/Cont. from page 2
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By Karen R. Krub

On October 19, 1998, Congress passed
H.R. 4328, “Making Omnibus Consoli-
dated and Emergency Supplemental
Appropriations for Fiscal Year 1999.”
President Clinton signed this bill into
law on October 21, 1998. 1 Regulations
implementing the changes have not yet
been adopted by USDA, but the Secre-
tary of Agriculture is directed to issue the
necessary regulations “as soon as practi-
cable.” 2 In this article, the bill will be
referred to as the “1999 Omnibus Bill.”
This article will be presented in two
succeeding issues of the Agricultural Law
Update.

This article summarizes some of the
major agricultural provisions of the bill—
including (1) Agricultural Credit; (2) Di-
saster Relief; (3) Chapter 12 Bankruptcy;
(4) Conservation Programs; (5) Livestock
Pricing and Trade Provisions; (6) Dairy
Pricing; (7) Discrimination at USDA; (8)
Crop Insurance Provisions; (9) Miscella-
neous Ag Provisions; and, (10) Tax—but
readers should be aware that there are
other agricultural provisions which are
not discussed here. Further, many non-
agricultural sections of the new law may
affect farmers and ranchers.

Agricultural creditAgricultural creditAgricultural creditAgricultural creditAgricultural credit
The 1999 Omnibus Bill contains a num-

ber of significant amendments to laws
controlling the Farm Service Agency
(FSA) farm loan programs. 3

Some loosening of eligibility restrictions
where borrower had prior “debt
forgiveness”

The 1999 Omnibus Bill makes some
changes to the restrictions on FSA loan
eligibility where the borrower has had
debt forgiveness. The changes affect the
general eligibility rules for FSA guaran-
teed loans and emergency (EM) loans.
The changes also affect the special excep-
tion for direct and guaranteed operating
(OL) loans.

• New guaranteed loans available if no
more than three occasions of debt for-
giveness before April 4, 1996

Under provisions coming out of the
1996 FAIR Act, 4 any borrower who had
received “debt forgiveness” 5 on a direct or
guaranteed USDA Farm Program loan
was ineligible for any type of new direct

or guaranteed Farm Program loan. 6 Un-
der the 1999 Omnibus Bill, the general
rule is made much less restrictive for
new FSA guaranteed loans. 7 The new
general rule for guaranteed loans is sum-
marized as follows:

A guaranteed loan cannot be made to a
farmer who received debt forgiveness
on a Farm Program loan  after  April 4,
1996, or to a farmer who received debt
forgiveness on more than three occa-
sions before April 5, 1996.
Thus, a farmer could have received

debt forgiveness on as many as three
occasions before April 5, 1996, and still
be eligible for a new loan guaranteed by
FSA. 8

• New emergency (EM) loans
available where not more than one debt
forgiveness before April 5, 1996

The 1999 Omnibus Bill provides that
an FSA emergency (EM) loan can be
granted to a borrower who has received
“not more than one debt forgiveness”
before April 5, 1996, and who has not
received debt forgiveness after April 4,
1996. 9 Thus, borrowers who received debt
forgiveness only once prior to April 5,
1996—and not at all after April 4, 1996—
can still be considered for emergency
(EM) loans. 10

• New operating credit avail-
able if prior debt forgiveness came through
write-down or  a confirmed bankruptcy
plan

Under the 1996 FAIR Act provisions,
there was only one exception to the ineli-
gibility of borrowers with prior debt for-
giveness. This exception provided that
borrowers who had received their debt
forgiveness as a result of a write-down
through the administrative debt restruc-
turing process could still be considered
for direct or guaranteed  operating  (OL)
loans to pay their annual expenses. 11

The 1999 Omnibus Bill expands this
exception to allow new direct and guar-
anteed operating (OL) loans for borrow-
ers who are current on payments under a
confirmed bankruptcy reorganization
plan under Chapters 11, 12, or 13 of the
Bankruptcy Code. 12 Thus, farmers who
have received debt forgiveness as a result
of the administrative debt restructuring
process or  who are current on payments
under a confirmed bankruptcy reorgani-
zation plan can be considered for either a
direct or guaranteed operating (OL) loan
for payment of their annual expenses. 13

• Other debt forgiveness restric-
tions remain unchanged

The other general “debt forgiveness”
eligibility restrictions imposed by the

1996 Farm Bill were not changed by the
1999 Omnibus Bill. For example: A di-
rect FSA loan still cannot be made to a
farmer who has received any past debt
forgiveness unless the farmer falls within
one of the exceptions discussed above. 14

Farm borrowers are still limited to one
administrative “debt forgiveness” on a
direct FSA loan. 15

The prohibition on making or guaran-
teeing loans to delinquent borrowers re-
mains the same. 16

Changes to emergency (EM) loan
security requirements

The 1999 Omnibus Bill makes some
limited changes to the basic security re-
quirements for FSA emergency (EM) loan
eligibility. The Secretary of Agriculture
is allowed some further flexibility in
evaluating the collateral necessary to
support the loan. Although the general
rule that there must be adequate secu-
rity for the loan remains the same, the
amendment adds the following new lan-
guage: 17

the Secretary shall not deny a loan... to
a borrower by reason of the fact that
the borrower lacks a particular amount
of collateral for the loan if the Secre-
tary is reasonably certain that the bor-
rower will be able to repay the loan.
This language affirms authority al-

ready provided by the statute for the
Secretary to take less than full security
for emergency (EM) loans if there is rea-
sonable assurance of the borrower’s re-
payment ability. 18 However, by providing
for no additional limitations beyond the
reasonable certainty of repayment, the
new language removes statutory author-
ity for such restrictions imposed by FSA
regulations.

FSA has interpreted the amendment
to require that it drop its requirement
that the portion of an emergency (EM)
loan secured by repayment ability be
repaid within three years. 19 That change
is certainly warranted by the new statu-
tory language. However, because the new
language makes no mention of limits on
the reason  for the borrower’s lack of
security, the agency’s continuing enforce-
ment of a requirement that the borrower’s
lack of collateral be due to disaster-re-
lated depreciation appears to be simi-
larly without statutory support. 20

The 1999 Omnibus Bill also allows the
Secretary to deny or cancel an emergency
(EM) loan if the borrower refuses to pledge
available collateral when requested by
the agency. 21

TTTTThe aghe aghe aghe aghe ag rrrrr iculturiculturiculturiculturicultur e pre pre pre pre pr ooooovisions of thevisions of thevisions of thevisions of thevisions of the
1999 Omnibus 1999 Omnibus 1999 Omnibus 1999 Omnibus 1999 Omnibus ApprApprApprApprAppr opropropropropr iations Billiations Billiations Billiations Billiations Bill

Karen R. Krub is an attorney with Farm-
ers’ Legal Action Group, Inc., St. Paul,
M N .
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Elimination of multiple benefits
restriction on CAT or NAP benefits and
emergency (EM) loans

Under restrictions imposed by the 1996
FAIR Act, farmers entitled to receive
crop insurance benefits under “cata-
strophic risk protection” (CAT) coverage
who are also eligible for other USDA
assistance related to the crop loss have to
choose which assistance to receive—they
cannot receive both. 22 Similarly, under
the Non-Insured Disaster Assistance
Program (NAP), farmers who are eligible
for NAP benefits as well as other USDA
assistance related to the crop loss also
have to choose which benefit to receive. 23

FSA has treated emergency loans as loss
benefits under these provisions, so in
case of crop disaster, farmers have had to
choose between receiving CAT or NAP
benefits and obtaining an FSA emer-
gency (EM) loan. 24

The 1999 Omnibus Bill changes the
law governing CAT insurance coverage
and NAP to specifically allow farmers to
receive both  the available benefits from
CAT or NAP and an FSA emergency (EM)
loan for the same crop disaster. 25

New notice requirement for 5-year limit
on direct loan eligibility

The 1996 Farm Bill imposed a “transi-
tion rule” on eligibility for direct FSA real
estate loans. The rule puts limits on how
many years a borrower may obtain a
direct farm ownership (FO) loan, thereby
requiring farmers to “graduate” from the
subsidized federal loan program to either
private or guaranteed farm financing
arrangements. 26

The 1999 Omnibus Bill does not change
this restriction, but it requires the Secre-
tary of Agriculture to notify borrowers
that they will become ineligible for addi-
tional direct farm ownership (FO) loans
due to this restriction at least 12 months
before they become ineligible. 27

Changes in guaranteed loan eligibility
requirements regarding training or
experience

For almost 40 years, general eligibility
requirements for direct and guaranteed
farm program loans have provided that
the borrower must “have either training
or farming experience that the Secretary
determines is sufficient to assure reason-
able prospects of success in the proposed
farming operations.” 28 The Secretary is
authorized by federal statute to provide
needed training programs for borrow-
ers. 29

The 1999 Omnibus Bill exempts all
guaranteed loans—both for real estate
purchases and operating expenses—from
FSA’s “training or experience” require-
ment. 30 This requirement now applies
only to the direct loan programs. The

1999 Omnibus Bill also eliminates the
specific statutory authority for the agency
to conduct and contract for training pro-
grams for guaranteed loan borrowers. 31

FSA will continue to consider a guaran-
teed loan borrower’s training, education,
and experience as they are reflected in
the projected production levels, income,
and expenses in the farm business plan. 32

Changes in guaranteed loan limits
Before the 1999 Omnibus Bill was en-

acted, federal statute provided that no
guaranteed farm ownership (FO) loan
could be made that would cause the un-
paid balance of the borrower’s total di-
rect and guaranteed farm ownership (FO)
debt to exceed $300,000. 33 Similarly, no
guaranteed operating (OL) loan could be
made that would cause the unpaid bal-
ance of the borrower’s total direct and
guaranteed operating debt to exceed
$400,000. 34

The 1999 Omnibus Bill combines these
loan limit amounts, thus making the
total maximum unpaid indebtedness
$700,000 for guaranteed farm ownership
and/or operating debt in any combina-
tion. 35 The amendment provides for an
indexing of this maximum amount, al-
lowing it to increase to reflect inflation. 36

In addition to combining the loan lim-
its, however, the amendment language
also slightly altered how the loan limits
are to be calculated. 37 Under the 1999
Omnibus Bill language, when calculat-
ing limits for a new guaranteed real
estate loan you would start with $700,000
and subtract all outstanding real estate
loans—direct and guaranteed—and all
guaranteed  operating loans. The farmer
could have up to an additional $200,000
in direct operating loans that would not
be included in the limit. Similarly, for
new guaranteed operating loans you
would start with $700,000 and subtract
all outstanding operating loans—direct
and guaranteed—and all guaranteed  real
estate loans. The farmer could have up to
an additional $200,000 in direct real es-
tate loans which would not be included in
the limit.

New notice requirement for shared
appreciation mortgages

The 1999 Omnibus Bill adds a new
provision explicitly requiring the Secre-
tary of Agriculture to notify borrowers at
least 12 months before the end of the
term of a Shared Appreciation Agree-
ment. 38 However, borrowers should be
aware that this notice requirement does
not take effect until fiscal year 2000—
which begins October 1, 1999.

Elimination of cash flow margin in
debt restructuring calculation

The 1996 Farm Bill changed the cash

flow margin requirements for FSA’s debt
restructuring and loan servicing process
from 105 percent to 110 percent. 39 Before
the 1999 Omnibus Bill was enacted, the
Secretary could assume that the bor-
rower would need up to 110 percent of
the amount estimated for payment of
farm operating expenses, debt service
obligations, and family living expenses.
This provided a 10 percent cushion for
unanticipated or larger than expected
expenses. 40

The 1999 Omnibus Bill changes the
cash flow margin from 110 percent to 100
percent. 41

Disaster reliefDisaster reliefDisaster reliefDisaster reliefDisaster relief
The 1999 Omnibus Bill provides a sig-

nificant amount of financial assistance
for agricultural producers affected by
natural disasters and low commodity
prices in 1998. Much of the disaster fund-
ing is provided with the Secretary having
“broad authority” to create programs for
assistance. Distribution of other disaster
funding must comply with program terms
set out by Congress.

Crop loss assistance
In the 1999 Omnibus Bill Congress

appropriated more than $2.5 billion for
crop loss assistance.

• Disaster assistance for 1998
crop year and multiyear losses

The 1999 Omnibus Bill provides $1.5
billion in emergency assistance for pro-
ducers who “incurred losses in the 1998
crop year due to disasters.” 42 The 1999
Omnibus Bill provides $875 million as
assistance to producers who have in-
curred multiyear losses in the 1998 and
preceding crop years due to disasters. 43

Finally, the 1999 Omnibus Bill provides
$200 million for livestock feed assistance
to producers affected by disasters during
calendar year 1998. 44

• Secretary will determine how
to distribute assistance

The Secretary is given “broad author-
ity to create and implement a crop loss
assistance program with the funds made
available” by the 1999 Omnibus Bill. 45

The Secretary may establish loss thresh-
olds, payment rates, and eligibility crite-
ria. 46 Nonetheless, Congress did set some
standards for the “fair and equitable”
distribution of the funds. 47

•• Payment limitations not trig-
gered by many other USDA payments

The Secretary is authorized to estab-
lish payment limitations for the disaster
assistance provided by the 1999 Omni-
bus Bill. However, in calculating the limi-
tations, the Secretary may not include
payments received through other crop
loss or market loss programs under the
1999 Omnibus Bill, Production Flexibil-
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ity Contract Payments, USDA market-
ing loans, NAP benefits, crop insurance
indemnities for the 1998 crop year, or
emergency (EM) loans made available
for the 1998 crop. 48

•• Assistance available for 1998
losses or multiyear losses—not both

Producers may receive assistance un-
der the 1999 Omnibus Bill for 1998 crop
losses or multiyear losses, but not both. 49

•• Qualifying losses and crops
Disaster assistance provided by the

1999 Omnibus Bill may be used for crop
losses that are due to quantity losses,
quality losses, or “severe economic losses
due to damaging weather or related con-
dition.” 50 Losses for all crops are eligible
for the disaster assistance provided by
the 1999 Omnibus Bill, including losses
of “trees from which a crop is harvested.” 51

The specific determinations as to loss
qualification are left to the Secretary.

• Crop insurance coverage and
crop loss assistance

The 1999 Omnibus Bill prohibits the
Secretary from “discriminat[ing] against
or penaliz[ing]” producers who have pur-
chased crop insurance. 52 This generally
means that crop insurance coverage
should not be taken into consideration
when determining eligibility for program
benefits.

In order to receive disaster benefits
under the 1999 Omnibus Bill, producers
who did not purchase crop insurance for
the 1998 crop year must sign a contract
agreeing to purchase crop insurance for
the 1999 and 2000 crop years. 53 The con-
tract will provide for liquidated dam-
ages—as determined by the Secretary—
should the producer fail to purchase the
crop insurance required by the contract. 54

A press announcement released Decem-
ber 12, 1998, indicated USDA’s intent to
use some $400 million of the crop loss
funding to provide incentive payments
for farmers to purchase higher “buy up”
levels of crop insurance for their 1999
crops. 55 This use of the crop loss assis-
tance appropriation does not appear to
be authorized by the statutory language
which refers only to “premium refunds
and other assistance ... for [the] 1998
insured crops, or [the] preceding (includ-
ing 1998) insured crops.” 56

Market loss assistance
The 1999 Omnibus Bill provides $3.057

billion in assistance as partial compen-
sation for loss of markets for 1998 com-
modity crops. 57

• $2.857 billion for production
flexibility contract holders

The great majority of the market loss
assistance under the 1999 Omnibus Bill
is available to farm owners and produc-
ers who are eligible for 1998 Production
Flexibility Contract (PFC) payments. The

benefits are to be proportional to PFC
payments made in 1998 and are to be
paid out “as soon as practicable.” 58 The
conference report accompanying the law
makes it clear that although the funding
is proportional to PFC payments, market
loss assistance payments are not to be
treated as PFC payments for purposes of
payment limitations. 59 The Committee
also directs the Secretary not to require
producers to file new contracts or redes-
ignate shares in order to receive market
loss payments. 60

• $200 million for dairy farmers
Out of the funding set aside for market

loss assistance under the 1999 Omnibus
Bill, $200 million is specifically targeted
to dairy producers. 61 The Secretary is to
determine how this funding will be made
available.

• Other disaster assistance pro-
visions of the 1999 Omnibus Bill

The 1999 Omnibus Bill provides an
additional $3 million to the Dairy Pro-
duction Disaster Assistance Program. 62

This program provides assistance for
dairy farmers who suffer production
losses due to natural disasters.

Due to “disastrously low prices,” the
1999 Omnibus Bill authorizes the Secre-
tary to make recourse loans to honey
producers for the 1998 crop. 63

The 1999 Omnibus Bill requires the
Secretary to make NAP payments in
fiscal year 1999 to raisin producers who
had catastrophic (CAT) insurance cover-
age but who were unable to comply with
the insurance policy requirements due to
adverse weather conditions. 64

The 1999 Omnibus Bill authorizes the
Secretary to use funds for the Tree Assis-
tance Program to assist producers suf-
fering losses due to disasters that oc-
curred from May 1, 1998, to August 1,
1998, even if the harm caused did not
become evident until after August 1,
1998. 65 Producers have until May 31,
1999, to demonstrate loss due to fire
blight infestation caused by an eligible
disaster.

1 The legislation is known as Public Law 105-277.
Statute-at-Large designations have not yet been made. The
text of the bi l l  can be found in the Congressional  Record for
October 19, 1998.

2 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle XI, § 1133.
3 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, §§ 801-

808. These changes are temporarily being implemented by
the agency under FSA Notice FLP-10, “Statutory Changes
Because of FY 1999 Appropriations Legislation” (Dec. 4,
1998) ( set t o expi re Oct. 1 , 1999).

4 Federal Agriculture Improvement and Reform Act of
1996, Pub. L. No. 104-127, 100 Stat. 888-1197 (Apr. 4,
1996) (“1996 FAIR Act”).

5 “Debt forgiveness” is defined in the 1996 FAIR Act as
fol lows:

“(12) Debt Forgiveness. –“(A) In General. –
Except as provided in subparagraph (B), the term ‘debt
forgiveness’ means reducing or terminating a farmer pro-
gram loan made or guaranteed under this title, in a manner
that resul ts in a loss to the Secretary, through –

“(i ) wri ting down or wri ting off a loan under section 2001
of this title;

“(i i ) compromising, adjusting, reducing, or charging-off a
debt or claim under section 1981 of this ti tle;

“(iii) paying a loss on a guaranteed loan under section
2005 of this title; or

“(i v) discharging a debt as a resul t of bankruptcy.
“(B) Loan Restructuring.—The term ‘debt forgiveness’

does not i nclude consol idation, reschedul ing, reamorti zation,
or deferral.”

1996 FAIR Act, § 640(2) (codified at 7 U.S.C.
§ 1991(a)(12)).

Note t hat i f t he debt action did not r esul t i n a
loss to the Secretary i t i s not considered “debt forgiveness”
for these purposes.

6 1996 FAIR Act, § 648(b) (codi fi ed at7 U.S.C. § 2008h(b)).
7 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII,§ 801

(to be codified as 7 U.S.C. § 2008h(b)(1)(B)).
8 See FSA Notice FLP-10, “Statutory Changes Because

of FY 1999 Appropriations Legislation” par. 2.E (Dec. 4,
1998) ( set t o expi re Oct. 1 , 1999).

9 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII,§ 801
(to be codified as 7 U.S.C. § 2008h(b)(2)(B)).

10 See FSA Notice FLP-10, “Statutory Changes Because
of FY 1999 Appropriations Legislation” par. 2.E (Dec. 4,
1998) ( set t o expi re Oct. 1 , 1999).

11 1996 FAIR Act, § 648(b) (codified at 7 U.S.C.
§ 2008h(b)(2)).

12 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 801
(to be codi fied at 7 U.S.C. § 2008h(b)(2)(A)(i i )).

13 See FSA Notice FLP-10, “Statutory Changes Because
of FY 1999 Appropriations Legislation” par. 2.E (Dec. 4,
1998) ( set t o expi re Oct. 1 , 1999).

14 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 801
(to be codi fied at 7 U.S.C. § 2008h(b)(1)(A)).

15 7 U.S.C. § 2008h(c).
16 7 U.S.C. § 2008h(a); 31 U.S.C. § 3720B; 7 C.F.R.

§§ 1941.12(a)(11), (b)(12), 1943.12(a)(11), (b)(12),
1980.175(b), 1980.180(b) (1998).

17 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 802
(adding 7 U.S.C. § 1964(d)(2)(A)).

18 See 7 U.S.C. § 1964(d).
19 FSA Notice FLP-10, “Statutory Changes Because of

FY 1999 Appropriations Legislation” par. 2.I (Dec. 4, 1998)
(set to expi re Oct. 1, 1999).

20 See 7 C.F.R. § 1945.169(g)(1) (1998) for current
requi rements l inking lack of sufficient col lateral  to disaster.

21 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 802
(adding 7 U.S.C. § 1964(d)(2)(B)).

22 1996 FAIR Act,  § 194(f) (codi fied at 7 U.S.C. § 1508(n)).
This restri cti on does not apply to addi ti onal  crop insurance
coverage purchased by the farmer over the CAT level.

23 1996 FAIR Act, §  196(i )(3) ( codi fi ed a t 7  U.S.C.
§ 7333(i)(3)).

24 See, FSA Notice FC-207, “Multiple Benefits on Emer-
gency (EM) Loans” (Aug. 19, 1998) (rescinded December 4,
1998).

25 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 803
(amending 7 U.S.C. §§ 1508(n), 7333(i)(3)).

26 1996 FAIR Act, § 601 (codi fi ed at 7 U.S.C. § 1922(b)(3)).
See FSA Notice FLP-10, “Statutory Changes Because of FY
1999 Appropriations Legislation” par. 2.D (Dec. 4, 1998) (set
to expire Oct. 1, 1999) (rescinding FSA Notice FC-207,
“Multiple Benefits on Emergency (EM) Loans.”

27 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 804
(adding 7 U.S.C. § 1922(b)(3(D)). See FSA Notice FLP-10,
“Statutory Changes Because of FY 1999 Appropriations
Legislation” par. 2.C ( Dec. 4, 1998) ( set t o expi re Oct. 1,
1999).

28 7 U.S.C. § 1922(a)(2) (applicable to direct and guaran-
teed operating loans); 7 U.S.C. § 1941(a)(2) (applicable to
direct and guaranteed real estate loans).

29 7 U.S.C. § 2006a.
30 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 805

(amending 7 U.S.C. §§ 1922(a)(2), 1941(a)(2)). See FSA
Notice FLP-10, “Statutory Changes Because of FY 1999
Appropriations Legislation” par. 2.G, H (Dec. 4, 1998) (set to
expi re Oct. 1 , 1999).

31 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 805
(amending 7 U.S.C. § 2006a(a), (c)).
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In addition, the Judicial Officer con-
cluded that GIPSA had failed to prove
that IBP give the Beef Marketing Group
an “undue” or “unreasonable” preference
as required under the Packers and Stock-
yards Act. As the Judicial Officer ac-
knowledged, the Packers and Stockyards
Act does not define “undue” and “unrea-
sonable,” and those terms must be de-
fined according to the facts of each case.
Considering the facts surrounding the
Beef Marketing Agreement and assum-
ing GIPSA had proven a $0.43 per hun-
dredweight price advantage, the Judicial
Officer noted that sum “represented only
about one-half of one percent of the pur-
chase price of a typical animal.” Id . at 32.
Also noting that “the cost of gain at
feedlots can vary as much as $15 to $30
per hundredweight,” the Judicial Officer
observed that “it is questionable whether
a difference of $0.43 per hundredweight
would significantly affect either [pro-
ducer] profits or placement of cattle by
producers.” Id . at 33.

As to GIPSA’s allegation that IBP’s
failure to offer the terms of the Beef
Marketing Agreement to all feedlots in
Kansas violated the Packers and Stock-
yards Act, the Judicial Officer first in-
voked Armour & Co. v. United States , 402
F.2d 712, 720 (7th Cir. 1968), for the
proposition that, under the Act, “price
differences are not illegal, absent anti-
competitive intent....” Id . at 35. Noting
that “courts have disagreed on whether
there is a requirement that there be an
injury to competition, or whether injury
to competitors is enough,” the Judicial
Officer found “that harm to competition
can be proven by showing harm to com-
petitors ....” Id . at 36. In this regard, the
Judicial Officer concluded “that the Pack-
ers and Stockyards Act does not require
that the person harmed be a direct com-
petitor of the person causing the harm,
viz ., it would be a violation of the Packers
and Stockyards Act if it were shown that
a packer caused harm, which the Pack-
ers and Stockyards Act is designed to
prevent, to a feedlot or a livestock pro-
ducer.” Id .

Here, however, the Judicial Officer
determined that GIPSA failed to prove
injury to either cattle producers or to
feedlots that were not members of the
Beef Marketing Group. The Judicial Of-
ficer found that the evidence demon-
strated that a feedlot’s membership in
the Beef Marketing Group “was not of
particular concern to [producers] in mak-
ing cattle placement decisions,” and feed-
lots that were not members of the Group
continued to receive competitive prices.
Id . at 37-38.

The Judicial Officer took a different
view of the right of first refusal, however.
Since the right of first refusal only re-
quired IBP to match, not exceed, the

previous high bid, the Judicial Officer
found that the right of first refusal “has
the potential of discouraging others from
bidding on cattle and necessarily restricts
competition because [IBP’s] right of first
refusal obviates [IBP’s] need to compete
for cattle place at Beef Marketing Group
feedlots in order to obtain those cattle.”
Id . at 74. Instead of competing, IBP
needed only to make a bid and then,
without participating in any further bid-
ding, obtain the cattle by matching any
bid higher than IBP’s bid. The net effect,
or potential effect, was the suppression
of the bidding process. The Judicial Of-
ficer concluded that this right violated
section 202 of the Act “because it has the
effect or potential effect of reducing com-
petition.” Id . at 74-75 (citing Swift & Co.
v. United States , 308 F.2d 849, 853 (7th
Cir. 1962); In re San Jose Valley Veal,
Inc. , 34 Agric. Dec. 966, 985 (1975)).

—Christopher R. Kelley, University of
Arkansas, Fayetteville, AR.

32 FSA Notice FLP-10, “Statutory Changes Because of
FY 1999 Appropriations Legislation” par. 2.H (Dec. 4, 1998)
(set to expi re Oct. 1, 1999)

33 7 U.S.C. § 1925.
34 7 U.S.C. § 1943.
35 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 806

(amending 7 U.S.C. §§ 1925, 1943).
36 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 806

(amending 7 U.S.C. §§ 1925, 1943). The inflation factor
used will be the Prices Paid by Farmers Index compiled by
the National Agricultural Statistics Service of USDA. The
inflation i ncreases wi l l  begin wi th f i scal  y ear 2000, which
starts October 1, 1999.

37 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 806
(amending 7 U.S.C. §§ 1925, 1943). See FSA Notice FLP-
10, “Statutory Changes Because of FY 1999 Appropriations
Legislation” par. 2.F ( Dec. 4, 1998) ( set t o expi re Oct. 1,
1999).

38 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 807
(adding 7 U.S.C. § 2001(e)(6)). See FSA Notice FLP-10,
“Statutory Changes Because of FY 1999 Appropriations
Legislation” par. 2.B ( Dec. 4, 1998) ( set t o expi re Oct. 1,
1999).

39 1996 FAIR Act, § 645(l)(A) (codified at 7 U.S.C.
§ 2001(c)(3)(C)).

40 See t he defini tion of a “ feasible plan” at 7 C.F.R.
§ 1951.906 (1998).

41 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle VIII, § 808
(amending 7 U.S.C. § 2001(c)(3)(C)). See FSA Notice FLP-
10, “Statutory Changes Because of FY 1999 Appropriations
Legislation” par. 2.A ( Dec. 4, 1998) ( set t o expi re Oct. 1,
1999). On December 4, 1998, FSA directed local offices to
immediately stop approving administrative write-downs
based on cash flow margins exceeding 100 percent.

42 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tl e XI,
§ 1102(b).

43 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle XI, § 1102(c).
The Secretary i s g i ven t he authori ty t o define “ mul ti year
losses” f or t he purposes of d istributing t hese benefi ts,
however the law specifically includes “diseases such as
scab” as el igible disasters.

44 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle XI, § 1103.
45 Joint Statement of the Committee of Conference, H.R.

4328, Congressional Record for Oct. 19, 1998, (hereinafter
“Conference Report”) at H11302.

46 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tl e XI,
§ 1101(b).

47 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tl e XI,
§ 1101(a).

48 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tl e XI,
§ 1101(b)(3).

49 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tl e XI,
§ 1102(d).

50 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , § 1102(e). Al fatoxin i s speci fi cal l y
mentioned as a possible source of quality loss.

51 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle XI, § 1102(f).
52 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tl e XI,

§ 1102(g)(1).
53 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tl e XI,

§ 1102(g)(3).
54 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tl e XI,

§ 1102(g)(4).
55 “President Clinton Announces Emergency Aid to Farm-

ers,” White House Press Briefing (Dec. 12, 1998).
56 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tl e XI,

§ 1102(g)(2).
57 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle XI, § 1111.
58 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tl e XI,

§ 1111(b), (c).
59 Conference Report at H11302.
60 Conference Report at H11302.
61 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tl e XI,

§ 1111(d).
62 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle XIII.
63 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle XI, § 1122.
64 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle XI, § 1123.
65 1999 Omnibus Bi l l , Div. A, Agricul ture, Ti tle XI, § 757.
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no reason to expect the trespasser’s pres-
ence.  Although not addressed in the
opinion, there is an implication that an
expected trespasser might be subject to a
different standard.

The Court noted that there are some
arguments in favor of retaining the com-
mon-law rule.  Juries are more likely to be
composed of land entrants than landown-
ers; therefore, the common-law rule serves
as a check on the power of juries.  The
Court noted that there is no empirical
support for this view and that modern
jurors are more likely to be landowners
than in the feudal period that gave rise to
the rule.  The excessive cost of adequate
insurance is another argument favoring
the common-law rule.  The Court rejected
this reason too based upon its conclusion
that the rule that it adopted does not
require the landowner be an absolute in-
surer against all injuries that occur on the
land.  The landowner is only required to
avoid being negligent.  The last argument
that the Court cited is that the trichotomy
promotes predictability in the law.  The
Court also rejected this argument stating
that the negligence standard of reason-
ableness provides greater predictability
than the trichotomy.  In support of its
position the Court cited numerous deci-
sions from other jurisdictions supporting
the proposition that the trichotomy is a
relic of a rural, feudal era.  Of greater
importance to its conclusion the Court
observed that the trichotomy has created
“a complex, confusing, and unpredictable
state of law.”  Finally the Court con-
cluded that the rule, as applied, was
arbitrary, unjust and unfair.

—Theodore A. Feitshans, North
Carolina State Univ., Raleigh, NC.
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